King County
Housing
Authority

HYBRID MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Monday, March 17, 2025
3:00 pm

Webinar Meeting:

https://kcha-org.zoom.us/|/84244814646

Webinar ID: 842 4481 4646

Phone: (253) 215-8782

King County Housing Authority | 700 Andover Park West | Tukwila, WA 98188


https://kcha-org.zoom.us/j/84244814646

II.

I11.

VI.

VII.

King County
Housing
Authority

HYBRID MEETING
OF THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA

Monday, March 17, 2025 - 3:00 p.m.

King County Housing Authority - Snoqualmie Conference Room
700 Andover Park West, Tukwila, WA 98188

Call to Order

Roll Call

Public Comment

Approval of Minutes 1

A. Board Meeting Minutes — February 18, 2025
Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda 2

A. Voucher Certification Reports for January 2025

Resolutions for Discussion

A. Resolution No. 53789 — 3
A Resolution providing for the issuance of revenue and refunding
revenue bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount
not to exceed $[100,000,000.00] for purposes which may include
refunding certain outstanding obligations and financing the acquisition
of one or more housing projects of the Authority, and determining related
matters.



VIII. Briefings & Reports
A. Fourth Quarter 2024 Executive Dashboard 4

B. Fourth Quarter 2024 Write-Off Report 5

IX. President/CEO Report

X. Commissioner Comments

XI. Adjournment

Members of the public who wish to give public comment: We are now accepting public comment during the
meeting or written comments. Please send your requests for public comment to the Board Coordinator via
email to kamir@kcha.org prior to the meeting date. If you have questions, please call 206-574-1206.



mailto:kamir@kcha.org

= << 0

Z D > 0 W

—



II.

I11.

MEETING MINUTES OF THE
KING COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
SPECIAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

HYBRID MEETING

Tuesday, February 18, 2025

CALL TO ORDER

The special monthly meeting of the King County Housing Authority Board of
Commissioners was held as a special hybrid meeting on Tuesday, February 18, 2025.
There being a quorum, the hybrid meeting was called to order by Chair Barnes at 3:00
p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: = Commissioner Doug Barnes (Chair) (via Zoom), Commissioner Regina
Elmi (via Zoom), Commissioner Richard Jackson (via Zoom),
Commissioner Tina Keys (via Zoom) and Commissioner Jerry Lee

PUBLIC COMMENT

Kathleen Smith gave public comment.

Alex Tsimerman gave public comment.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Board Meeting Minutes — January 21, 2025

On motion by Commissioner Richard Jackson, and seconded by Commissioner Jerry
Lee, the Board unanimously approved the January 21, 2025 meeting minutes.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

On motion by Commissioner Richard Jackson, and seconded by Commissioner
Regina Elmi, the Board unanimously approved the February 18, 2025, hybrid Board
of Commissioners’ meeting agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Voucher Certification Reports for December 2024

On motion by Commissioner Regina Elmi, and seconded by Commissioner Jerry Lee,
the Board unanimously approved the February 18, 2025, hybrid Board of
Commissioners’ meeting consent agenda.

VII. RESOLUTIONS FOR DISCUSSION

A. Resolution No. 5785 — A Resolution declaring the Authority’s intention to sell tax-

exempt obligations to finance the Trailhead Apartments.

Daniel Landes, VP of Development explained that they want to finance this
development by using the 4% low-income tax credits.



KCHA Board of Commissioners’
February 18, 2025

Meeting Minutes

Page 2 of 3

On motion by Commissioner Jerry Lee, and seconded by Commissioner Regina Elmi,
the Board unanimously approved Resolution 5785.

B. Resolution No. 5786 — KCHA Interlocal agreement with Pierce County Housing
Authority

Anneliese Gryta, Executive VP of Housing Operations/Chief Operations Officer
explained that this would streamline procurement practices for both agencies and
allow each agency to piggyback upon the other’s existing contracts. It is the most
cost-effective manner for obtaining needed materials, goods and/or services.

On motion by Commissioner Regina Elmi, and seconded by Commissioner Jerry Lee,
the Board unanimously approved Resolution 5786.

C. Resolution No. 5787 — Appointing of Auditing Officers for the Purpose of
Certifying Obligations of the Authority is in Accordance with RCW 42.24

Saeed Hajarizadeh, Executive VP of Administration/Chief Administrative Officer
explained this is a housecleaning item, adding a new employee as an auditing officer
for KCHA.

On motion by Commissioner Regina Elmi, and seconded by Commissioner Jerry Lee,
the Board unanimously approved Resolution 5787.

D. Resolution No. 5788 — Authorizing payment of a Retention and Accomplishment
Incentive for the Executive Director for Calendar Year 2024 and a Base Salary
Increase.

On motion by Commissioner Richard Jackson, and seconded by Commissioner Tina
Keys, the Board unanimously approved Resolution 5788.

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. To review the performance of public employees (RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g)).

3:34pm — Board meeting was suspended.

3:50pm — Board meeting was re-convened.

IX. PRESIDENT/CEO REPORT
Robin Walls, President/CEO gave news updates.

e We are focused on the efforts of the new Administration with respect to their cost
cutting efforts. HUD is expected to be substantially down staffed. It’s unclear in
terms of the programmatic impact, but there have been projections that at least
50% of HUD staff will be downsized. According to the news, this is expected to



KCHA Board of Commissioners’
February 18, 2025

Meeting Minutes

Page 3 of 3

take place in May. Most of the Senior Leadership at HUD have announced their
resignations, so we are expecting changes.

March 14, the continuing resolution that funds the current government will
expire. It’s our expectation that we will be facing a government shutdown. The US
Government will reach its debt limit and no longer be able to incur any spending.
We have taken proactive steps. For our housing assistance payments to landlords,
we spend close to $20 million a month on average for our voucher programs. We
have reserves, some of which are held with HUD, we have taken steps to getting
those reserves released directly to us, and they will allow us to continue to fund
the voucher program payments for at least two months. We are not in a position
where we would need to reduce staff, but we have taken steps to slow our hiring.
The last time there was a full government shutdown was during the first Trump
Administration, and it went for 30 days. We have received our finding notice from
HUD for March and April. For May and June, we would potentially use reserves.
If a shutdown went all the way until July, we would be impacted with respect to
payments to landlords for July 2025. We’ve never seen a shutdown that has gone
that extended period of time, going close to 90 days. That would be truly
extraordinary.

We will continue to take steps in the case if there is a budget resolution that has a
reduction in funding. Right now, we are currently funded at 99.5% with respect to
housing assistance payments. Worst case scenario is if we actually had to
terminate housing assistance, housing subsidies, but we are far from that. We are
continuing to look at the current funding that’s going through with respect to
Congress, and we’ve been doing a lot of financial modeling around various
scenarios.

X. KCHA IN THE NEWS

XI.

None.

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS

None.

XII. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Barnes adjourned the meeting at 4:07 p.m.

THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

ROBIN WALLS
Secretary



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

Q\



King County
Housing
" Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Mary Osier, Accounting Manager
Date: March 10, 2025

Re: VOUCHER CERTIFICATION FOR JANUARY 2025

I, Mary Osier, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been
furnished, the services rendered or the labor performed as described herein, and that
the claims represented by the vouchers listed below were just obligations of the
Housing Authority of the County of King, and that | am authorized to authenticate and
certify said claims.

Mary Osier
Accounting Manager
March 10, 2024

Bank Wires / ACH Withdrawals 3,221,606.46
Subtotal 3,221,606.46
Accounts Payable Vouchers
Key Bank Checks - #354768-355177 8,465,313.98
Tenant Accounting Checks - #12334-12350 6,176.59
Subtotal 8,471,490.57
Payroll Vouchers
Checks - #94050-94087 105,955.03
Direct Deposit 4,168,117.67
Subtotal 4,274,072.70
Section 8 Program Vouchers
Checks - #652946-653499 869,369.95
ACH - #628227-630829 22,635,090.01

Subtotal 23,504,459.96

Purchase Card / ACH Withdrawal -
Subtotal -

GRAND TOTAL $ 39,471,629.69



TO: THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF KING, WASHINGTON

FROM: Wen Xu, Director of Asset Management

I, Wen Xu, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the claims represented by the wire transactions below were just, due, and unpaid obligations against the Housing Authority, and that I, and my
designees, are authorized to authenticate and certify said claims.

Wen Xu

Date

Wired to Operating Account for Obligations of Property

Property Date Wire Transaction Claim Notes:

Alpine Ridge 01/02/2025 $ 6,609.53 AP & Payroll & OCR
Arbor Heights 01/02/2025 $ 16,898.37 AP & Payroll & OCR
Aspen Ridge 01/02/2025 $ 62,646.41 AP & Payroll & OCR
Auburn Square 01/02/2025 $ 26,354.06 AP & Payroll & OCR
Bellepark 01/02/2025 $ 15,351.20 AP

Carriage House 01/02/2025 $ 34,669.03 AP & Payroll & OCR
Carrington 01/02/2025 $ 38,514.02 AP & Payroll & OCR
Cascadian 01/02/2025 $ 35,867.43 AP & Payroll & OCR
Colonial Gardens 01/02/2025 $ 12,889.14 AP & Payroll & OCR
Cottonwood 01/02/2025 $ 12,651.03 AP & Payroll & OCR
Cove East 01/02/2025 $ 60,573.17 AP & Payroll & OCR
Fairwood 01/02/2025 $ 31,286.22 AP & Payroll & OCR
Hampton Greens 01/02/2025 $ 96,100.35 AP

Henry House 01/02/2025 $ 8,071.97 AP & Payroll & OCR
Heritage Park 01/02/2025 $ 12,541.85 AP & Payroll & OCR
Juanita View 01/02/2025 $ 23,153.57 AP & Payroll & OCR
Kendall Ridge 01/02/2025 $ 42,065.61 AP

Landmark 01/02/2025 $ 78,839.45 AP

Laurelwood 01/02/2025 $ 19,372.75 AP & Payroll & OCR
Meadows 01/02/2025 $ 11,408.15 AP & Payroll & OCR
Newporter 01/02/2025 $ 16,187.96 AP & Payroll & OCR
Nia 01/02/2025 $ 20,650.31 AP & Payroll & OCR
Overlake 01/02/2025 $ 46,085.16 AP & Payroll & OCR
Parkwood 01/02/2025 $ 17,417.85 AP & Payroll & OCR
Pinewood Village 01/02/2025 $ 21,153.34 AP & Payroll & OCR
Plum Court 01/02/2025 $ 15,814.08 AP & Payroll & OCR
Riverstone 01/02/2025 $ 50,925.52 AP

Salish 01/02/2025 $ 21,316.17 AP & Payroll & OCR




Salmon Creek 01/02/2025 $ 9,147.65 Monbhtly Bank fees
Salmon Creek 01/02/2025 $ 2,579.92 Monhtly Bank fees
Salmon Creek 01/02/2025 $ 8,382.71 AP & Payroll & OCR
Sandpiper East 01/02/2025 $ 61,082.28 AP & Payroll & OCR
Seola Crossing 01/02/2025 $ 8,942.05 AP & Payroll & OCR
Southwood Square 01/02/2025 $ 12,075.41 AP & Payroll & OCR
Sterling Ridge 01/02/2025 $ 21,419.65 AP & Payroll & OCR
Timberwood 01/02/2025 $ 25,708.23 AP & Payroll & OCR
Walnut Park 01/02/2025 $ 31,989.90 AP & Payroll & OCR
Windsor Heights 01/02/2025 $ 21,607.82 AP & Payroll & OCR
Woodridge Park 01/02/2025 $ 139,486.25 AP & Payroll & OCR
Woodside East 01/02/2025 $ 78,870.85 AP
Bellepark 01/08/2025 $ 18,319.07 AP & Payroll
Hampton Greens 01/08/2025 $ 46,911.86 AP & Payroll
Kendall Ridge 01/08/2025 $ 103,737.31 AP & Payroll
Landmark 01/08/2025 $ 34,397.18 AP & Payroll
Riverstone 01/08/2025 $ 33,851.91 AP & Payroll
Woodside East 01/08/2025 $ 24,036.10 AP & Payroll
Alpine Ridge 01/09/2025 $ 2,803.00 AP

Alpine Ridge 01/09/2025 $ 2,339.00 AP

Alpine Ridge 01/09/2025 $ 3,453.46 AP

Arbor Heights 01/09/2025 $ 11,175.61 AP

Aspen Ridge 01/09/2025 $ 12,573.57 AP

Auburn Square 01/09/2025 $ 2,345.06 AP
Carriage House 01/09/2025 $ 76,633.87 AP
Cascadian 01/09/2025 $ 6,411.47 AP

Colonial Gardens 01/09/2025 $ 4,802.37 AP
Corinthian 01/09/2025 $ 166,880.00 AP
Heritage Park 01/09/2025 $ 6,996.93 AP
Laurelwood 01/09/2025 $ 19,145.16 AP
Meadows 01/09/2025 $ 9,096.00 AP
Newporter 01/09/2025 $ 16,261.11 AP
Overlake 01/09/2025 $ 120,756.39 AP
Parkwood 01/09/2025 $ 4,629.30 AP
Pinewood Village 01/09/2025 $ 2,301.06 AP

Rainier View | 01/09/2025 $ 25,924.58 AP

Rainier View li 01/09/2025 $ 7,218.86 AP

Salish 01/09/2025 $ 3,028.37 AP

Salmon Creek 01/09/2025 $ 1,065.16 AP
Sandpiper East 01/09/2025 $ 15,566.87 AP




Si View 01/09/2025 $ 14,247.84 AP
Sterling Ridge 01/09/2025 $ 6,881.16 AP

Tall Cedars 01/09/2025 $ 21,064.49 AP
Timberwood 01/09/2025 $ 80,178.55 AP
Vashon Terrace 01/09/2025 $ 7,428.48 AP
Walnut Park 01/09/2025 $ 7,616.72 AP
Windsor Heights 01/09/2025 $ 17,486.65 AP
Woodridge Park 01/09/2025 $ 16,879.18 AP
Argyle 01/15/2025 $ 42,252.49 AP & Payroll
Ballinger Commons 01/15/2025 $ 106,061.30 AP & Payroll
Bellepark 01/15/2025 $ 41,368.95 AP
Emerson 01/15/2025 $ 116,953.80 AP & Payroll
Gilman Square 01/15/2025 $ 48,647.40 AP & Payroll
Hampton Greens 01/15/2025 $ 43,934.67 AP
Kendall Ridge 01/15/2025 $ 22,106.14 AP
Landmark 01/15/2025 $ 73,325.83 AP
Meadowbrook 01/15/2025 $ 78,878.06 AP & Payroll
Riverstone 01/15/2025 $ 25,055.78 AP
Salmon Creek 01/15/2025 $ 1,065.16 Monhtly Bank fees
Surrey Downs 01/15/2025 $ 53,284.92 AP & Payroll
Villages At South Station 01/15/2025 $ 105,301.10 AP & Payroll
Woodside East 01/15/2025 $ 27,375.42 AP
Alpine Ridge 01/16/2025 $ 10,984.50 AP & Payroll
Arbor Heights 01/16/2025 $ 34,935.31 AP & Payroll
Aspen Ridge 01/16/2025 $ 13,5682.12 AP & Payroll
Auburn Square 01/16/2025 $ 20,908.24 AP & Payroll
Carriage House 01/16/2025 $ 33,573.46 AP & Payroll
Carrington 01/16/2025 $ 26,522.11 AP & Payroll
Cascadian 01/16/2025 $ 77,599.67 AP & Payroll
Colonial Gardens 01/16/2025 $ 36,364.88 AP & Payroll
Corinthian 01/16/2025 $ 8,154.83 AP & Payroll
Cottonwood 01/16/2025 $ 13,149.06 AP & Payroll
Cove East 01/16/2025 $ 40,216.68 AP & Payroll
Fairwood 01/16/2025 $ 25,183.82 AP & Payroll
Henry House 01/16/2025 $ 10,688.13 AP & Payroll
Heritage Park 01/16/2025 $ 34,155.89 AP & Payroll
Juanita View 01/16/2025 $ 27,668.96 AP & Payroll
Laurelwood 01/16/2025 $ 26,680.40 AP & Payroll
Meadows 01/16/2025 $ 18,815.45 AP & Payroll
Newporter 01/16/2025 $ 34,830.57 AP & Payroll




Nia 01/16/2025 $ 66,587.30 AP & Payroll
Overlake 01/16/2025 $ 56,877.44 AP & Payroll
Parkwood 01/16/2025 $ 23,919.69 AP & Payroll
Pinewood Village 01/16/2025 $ 21,831.09 AP & Payroll
Plum Court 01/16/2025 $ 44,660.28 AP & Payroll
Rainier View | 01/16/2025 $ 1,881.64 AP
Rainier View li 01/16/2025 $ 884.53 AP
Salish 01/16/2025 $ 28,934.96 AP & Payroll
Salmon Creek 01/16/2025 $ 6,673.38 Monhtly Bank fees
Salmon Creek 01/16/2025 $ 57,655.86 AP & Payroll
Sandpiper East 01/16/2025 $ 28,670.43 AP & Payroll
Seola Crossing 01/16/2025 $ 63,959.18 AP & Payroll
Seola Crossing 01/16/2025 $ 33,427.98 AP & Payroll
Si View 01/16/2025 $ 516.52 AP
Southwood Square 01/16/2025 $ 29,978.75 AP & Payroll
Sterling Ridge 01/16/2025 $ 47,185.40 AP & Payroll
Tall Cedars 01/16/2025 $ 10,833.55 AP & Payroll
Timberwood 01/16/2025 $ 39,416.36 AP & Payroll
Vashon Terrace 01/16/2025 $ 3,190.76 AP
Walnut Park 01/16/2025 $ 83,261.83 AP & Payroll
Windsor Heights 01/16/2025 $ 68,867.82 AP & Payroll
Woodridge Park 01/16/2025 $ 36,199.80 AP & Payroll
Bellepark 01/22/2025 $ 14,903.20 AP
Hampton Greens 01/22/2025 $ 110,664.84 AP
Kendall Ridge 01/22/2025 $ 66,186.05 AP
Landmark 01/22/2025 $ 31,493.60 AP
Riverstone 01/22/2025 $ 41,041.43 AP
Woodside East 01/22/2025 $ 95,748.47 AP
Alpine Ridge 01/23/2025 $ 528.08 AP
Arbor Heights 01/23/2025 $ 9,192.03 AP
Aspen Ridge 01/23/2025 $ 2,977.98 AP
Auburn Square 01/23/2025 $ 21,392.68 AP
Carriage House 01/23/2025 $ 24,646.02 AP
Carrington 01/23/2025 $ 5,549.52 AP
Cascadian 01/23/2025 $ 8,345.17 AP
Colonial Gardens 01/23/2025 $ 28,814.86 AP
Fairwood 01/23/2025 $ 6,823.33 AP
Heritage Park 01/23/2025 $ 1,797.20 AP
Laurelwood 01/23/2025 $ 8,273.62 AP
Meadows 01/23/2025 $ 4,210.14 AP




Newporter 01/23/2025 $ 27,598.33 AP
Overlake 01/23/2025 $ 6,094.04 AP
Parkwood 01/23/2025 $ 8,769.69 AP
Pinewood Village 01/23/2025 $ 4,269.92 AP

Plum Court 01/23/2025 $ 18,967.89 AP

Rainier View | 01/23/2025 $ 278.54 AP

Rainier View li 01/23/2025 $ 2,018.27 AP

Salish 01/23/2025 $ 20,595.20 AP
Sandpiper East 01/23/2025 $ 28,691.30 AP

Si View 01/23/2025 $ 2,565.32 AP
Southwood Square 01/23/2025 $ 16,328.06 AP

Sterling Ridge 01/23/2025 $ 43,496.36 AP

Tall Cedars 01/23/2025 $ 13,226.86 AP
Timberwood 01/23/2025 $ 52,401.35 AP

Vashon Terrace 01/23/2025 $ 197.10 AP

Walnut Park 01/23/2025 $ 15,733.94 AP
Windsor Heights 01/23/2025 $ 16,297.57 AP
Woodridge Park 01/23/2025 $ 28,831.07 AP

Argyle 01/29/2025 $ 56,711.36 AP & Payroll
Ballinger Commons 01/29/2025 $ 134,571.74 AP & Payroll
Bellepark 01/29/2025 $ 1,159.50 AP
Emerson 01/29/2025 $ 72,076.38 AP & Payroll
Gilman Square 01/29/2025 $ 52,395.41 AP & Payroll
Hampton Greens 01/29/2025 $ 113,515.02 AP

Kendall Ridge 01/29/2025 $ 16,275.80 AP
Landmark 01/29/2025 $ 12,724.27 AP
Meadowbrook 01/29/2025 $ 102,662.62 AP & Payroll
Riverstone 01/29/2025 $ 16,392.47 AP

Surrey Downs 01/29/2025 $ 75,387.07 AP & Payroll
Villages At South Station 01/29/2025 $ 81,445.49 AP & Payroll
Woodside East 01/29/2025 $ 7,476.36 AP

Alpine Ridge 01/30/2025 $ 9,260.65 AP & Payroll & OCR
Arbor Heights 01/30/2025 $ 24,194.04 AP & Payroll & OCR
Aspen Ridge 01/30/2025 $ 35,191.88 AP & Payroll & OCR
Auburn Square 01/30/2025 $ 32,501.29 AP & Payroll & OCR
Carriage House 01/30/2025 $ 117,220.29 AP & Payroll & OCR
Carrington 01/30/2025 $ 15,340.70 AP & Payroll & OCR
Cascadian 01/30/2025 $ 60,474.52 AP & Payroll & OCR
Colonial Gardens 01/30/2025 $ 14,269.78 AP & Payroll & OCR
Cottonwood 01/30/2025 $ 15,123.04 AP & Payroll & OCR




Cove East 01/30/2025 $ 42,564.09 AP & Payroll & OCR
Fairwood 01/30/2025 $ 16,292.51 AP & Payroll & OCR
Henry House 01/30/2025 $ 35,806.31 AP & Payroll & OCR
Heritage Park 01/30/2025 $ 13,136.30 AP & Payroll & OCR
Juanita View 01/30/2025 $ 8,411.57 AP & Payroll & OCR
Laurelwood 01/30/2025 $ 19,927.54 AP & Payroll & OCR
Meadows 01/30/2025 $ 37,990.87 AP & Payroll & OCR
Newporter 01/30/2025 $ 28,447.91 AP & Payroll & OCR
Nia 01/30/2025 $ 13,396.33 AP & Payroll & OCR
Overlake 01/30/2025 $ 45,268.82 AP & Payroll & OCR
Parkwood 01/30/2025 $ 27,411.58 AP & Payroll & OCR
Pinewood Village 01/30/2025 $ 18,858.68 AP & Payroll & OCR
Plum Court 01/30/2025 $ 37,481.71 AP & Payroll & OCR
Rainier View | 01/30/2025 $ 2,844.13 AP

Rainier View li 01/30/2025 $ 1,109.76 AP

Salish 01/30/2025 $ 39,298.81 AP & Payroll & OCR
Salmon Creek 01/30/2025 $ 79,204.38 AP & Payroll & OCR
Sandpiper East 01/30/2025 $ 41,041.00 AP & Payroll & OCR
Seola Crossing 01/30/2025 $ 65,243.14 AP & Payroll & OCR
Seola Crossing 01/30/2025 $ 54,749.17 AP & Payroll & OCR
Si View 01/30/2025 $ 2,754.72 AP

Southwood Square 01/30/2025 $ 14,796.74 AP & Payroll & OCR
Sterling Ridge 01/30/2025 $ 37,076.28 AP & Payroll & OCR
Tall Cedars 01/30/2025 $ 2,184.95 AP

Timberwood 01/30/2025 $ 27,032.17 AP & Payroll & OCR
Walnut Park 01/30/2025 $ 46,338.05 AP & Payroll & OCR
Windsor Heights 01/30/2025 $ 30,771.30 AP & Payroll & OCR
Woodridge Park 01/30/2025 $ 41,517.20 AP & Payroll & OCR

216 Wires $ 6,952,464.50




= << 0

Z D > 0 W

o



King County
Housing
Authority

To: Board of Commissioners

From: Tim Walter, Senior Vice President of Development & Asset Management
Date: March 10, 2025

Re: Resolution providing for the issuance of revenue and refunding
revenue bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of
not to exceed $110,000,000 for the purposes of which include
refunding certain outstanding obligations and financing the
acquisition of one or more properties owned by the Authority and
determining related matters.

Resolution No. 5789 authorizes the Authority to issue publicly marketed tax-exempt
municipal bonds to finance the costs associated with the acquisition and/or
development of the Brier Woods, Sterling Ridge, Henry House and Village at
Overlake Station Apartments.

KCHA routinely uses its development lines of credit as its source of financing when
it acquires (preserves) existing workforce housing. In order to take advantage of
financing efficiencies, the Authority generally will hold or keep these properties on
its line of credit until there are at least two or three (or more) properties that can
then be rolled into a single tax-exempt publicly sold municipal bond issue and
refinanced off of the line of credit. Generally, KCHA also tries to target its bond
issues for financing efficiencies to single bond issuances that will be in the range of
$75 - $125 million. At the present time, KCHA has two previously acquired
properties on its line of credit, one new acquisition that will close within the next six
weeks and one existing property that is currently financed with floating rate
(variable rate) bonds that we would like to convert to fixed rate financing to
eliminate the variable rate interest exposure.

Background
KCHA acquired the Sterling Ridge Apartments in Kent (116 units) in November,

2023 for $28 million and the Henry House Apartments (54 units) in Shoreline for
$9.95 million. Both of these properties are currently financed from draws on the
Authority’s $80 million line of credit with KeyBank. The interest rate on the line of
credit is a floating (variable) rate of interest which over the past year has ranged
between 4.2% to slightly over 5%. Brier Woods Apartments in Federal Way (136
units) will be KCHA’s newest acquisition and is scheduled to close on May 1st. The
acquisition price for Brier Woods is $40.8 million. KCHA'’s Village at Overlake
Station is currently financed with variable rate bonds and the interest rate on the
bonds is reset weekly. While the actual interest rate paid by KCHA has generally



been slightly below the corresponding fixed rate, when interest rates shot up
between March, 2022, and May, 2023, the monthly interest payment on the bonds
more than quadrupled. Rates have come down slightly since then but have hovered
close to 3.5%. While 3.5% is lower than what the interest rate will be when converted
to a fixed rate, the rate is still variable and given pending economic uncertainties
could easily rise well above today’s fixed rated equivalent. Currently, Village at
Overlake Station has approximately $18.5 million in variable rate bonds
outstanding. In addition, the Village at Overlake Station is currently the only
property out of KCHA’s 150+ property portfolio where KCHA does not own the
underlying land. The land is currently owned by King County (Metro) and KCHA
has 55 years remaining on an existing 75-year ground lease. KCHA staff have been
working with King County to potentially acquire the underlying land from the
County. County staff have ‘recommended’ the disposition of the property to the King
County Executive’s office and the King County Council is expected to make a decision
as to whether or not it will consent to convey the underlying land to KCHA sometime
within the next 45-90 days. The appraised value for the land is $1.25 million. If
KCHA receives approval from the Council to acquire the land from the County, the
$1.25 million acquisition would additionally be able to be rolled into the current
proposed bond pool financing

Next Steps
Based on current interest rate projections, the Authority estimates the overall tax-

exempt interest rate will be between 4.25% — 4.75% depending on the overall
weighted maturity of the bond issue. KCHA will likely spread the amortization over
30 — 35 years but structure the facility with a 15 — 20 year maturity. Because interest
rates are notably higher the longer the maturity of the financing, by shortening the
financing to a 15 — 20 year term, it will help keep interest rates as low as possible but
still provide KCHA with the safety and security of a relatively long—term financing
window.

The bonds will be issued on a ‘parity of lien’ (shared collateral) with KCHA’s 2019,
2020 and 2021 Pooled Housing Bonds (which collectively will finance more than 30
of KCHA’s workforce housing properties). The ‘parity of lien’ structure allows KCHA
to combine these separate bond issues into a single master indenture (financing
agreement) across these bond pools for cross collateralization of project revenues,
security obligations and debt service coverage purposes.

Unfortunately, the net operating income of a newly acquired property is not
sufficient to fully cover the cost of acquiring the property (generally, the net
operating income of a newly acquired property can only support between 55% - 65%
of it’s purchase cost), the net operating income of the other properties in the
combined financing pools is necessary to cover the portion of the debt service the
newly acquired properties are not able to cover on their own. For the 2025 Pooled
bond issuance, the portion of the debt service not able to be supported by the net
operating income of the newly financed properties will be supported by other
properties in the 2019, 2020 and 2021 Pools which generate sufficient net operating
income to do so.



The current financing plan is to market and sell the bonds in mid-May. Given the
uncertainty of the current economic outlook, should market conditions change and
interest rates increase or if current general market or economic conditions do not
lend themselves to issuing the bonds at this time, KCHA is under no pressure or
obligation to issue bonds at this moment, and could continue to finance these
properties on its existing line of credit until market conditions change and the
economic environment is more conducive to completing the bond sale at interest
rates KCHA determines are in the best interest of the Authority. However, should
markets remain relatively constant and similar to current conditions, a full and
successful sale of the bond issue at competitive interest rates is projected.

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. 5789.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5789

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority
of the County of King providing for the issuance of one or more series of revenue
bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$110,000,000 for purposes that may include providing all or part of the funds with
which to effect the current refunding of certain outstanding obligations of the
Authority, financing capital costs associated with the acquisition and/or
rehabilitation of certain properties, and paying costs of issuing the bonds and the
administrative costs of such refundings; authorizing the execution and delivery of
a supplemental trust indenture, the bonds, and other agreements, documents, and
certificates; providing for the call, payment, and redemption of the obligations to
be refunded; delegating to officers of the Authority the authority to determine final
financing plan and the form, terms and covenants of the bonds and to execute such
documents as are useful or necessary to the purposes of this resolution; authorizing
officers of the Authority to accept an offer from KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. to
purchase the bonds; authorizing certain real estate and other transactions with
respect to the Overlake Project; and determining related matters.

Adopted March 17, 2025

This document was prepared by:

FOSTER GARVEY P.C.
1111 Third Avenue, Suite 3000
Seattle, Washington 98101
(206) 447-4400

FG: 103407864.5



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING
RESOLUTION NO. 5789

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority
of the County of King providing for the issuance of one or more series of revenue
bonds of the Authority in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$110,000,000 for purposes that may include providing all or part of the funds with
which to effect the current refunding of certain outstanding obligations of the
Authority, financing capital costs associated with the acquisition and/or
rehabilitation of certain properties, and paying costs of issuing the bonds and the
administrative costs of such refundings; authorizing the execution and delivery of
a supplemental trust indenture, the bonds, and other agreements, documents, and
certificates; providing for the call, payment, and redemption of the obligations to
be refunded; delegating to officers of the Authority the authority to determine final
financing plan and the form, terms and covenants of the bonds and to execute such
documents as are useful or necessary to the purposes of this resolution; authorizing
officers of the Authority to accept an offer from KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. to
purchase the bonds; authorizing certain real estate and other transactions with
respect to the Overlake Project; and determining related matters.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals and Findings. The Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the
Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority”) finds and determines:

@ Statutory Authorization. The Authority is authorized by the Housing
Authorities Law (chapter 35.82 RCW) to, among other things: (i) “prepare, carry out, acquire,
lease and operate housing projects; to provide for the construction, reconstruction, improvement,
alteration or repair of any housing project or any part thereof” (RCW 35.82.070(2)); (ii) issue
bonds, notes or other obligations for any of its corporate purpose (RCW 35.82.020(11) and RCW
35.82.130); (iii) pledge any real or personal property or any interest therein (RCW 35.82.070(5));
(iv) “make and execute contracts and other instruments, including but not limited to partnership
agreements” (RCW 35.82.070(1)); and (v) “delegate to one or more of its agents or employees
such powers or duties as [the Authority] may deem proper” (RCW 35.82.040). The phrase
“housing project” is defined by RCW 35.82.020 to include, among other things, “any work or
undertaking . . . to provide decent, safe and sanitary urban or rural dwellings, apartments, mobile
home parks, or other living accommodations for persons of low income” and the term “housing
project” may be applied to the “acquisition of property, the demolition of existing structures, the
construction, reconstruction, alteration and repair of improvements and all other work in
connection therewith.” The Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (chapter 1.80 RCW) provides that
each governmental agency of the State “shall determine whether, and the extent to which, a
governmental agency will send and accept electronic records and electronic signatures to and from
other persons and otherwise create, generate, communicate, store, process, use and rely upon
electronic records and electronic signatures” (RCW 1.80.170(1)).

FG: 103407864.5



(b) Prior Obligations. The Authority previously issued bonds and notes dated
the dates and in the original amounts set forth below (collectively, the “Prior Obligations”):

Original Principal

Name of Obligation Dated Date Amount
Revolving Line of Credit Revenue October 27, 2011 Not to Exceed
Note, 2011 (Tax-Exempt) $10,000,000
Revolving Line of Credit Revenue October 27, 2011 Not to Exceed
Note, 2011 (Taxable) $30,000,000
Revolving Line of Credit Revenue June 19, 2015 Not to Exceed
Note, 2015 (Tax-Exempt) $80,000,000
Revolving Line of Credit Revenue June 19, 2015 Not to Exceed
Note, 2015 (Taxable) $80,000,000

Variable Rate Demand Revenue June 29, 2001 $6,475,000

Bonds, 2000, Series B
(Overlake TOD Project, Phase I1)

Variable Rate Demand Revenue July 27, 2000 $21,525,000
Bonds, 2000 (Overlake TOD Project)

(© Issuance of the 2025 Bonds Necessary and Advisable and in the Best
Interests of the Authority. After due consideration, the Board has determined that it is necessary
and advisable and in the best interest of the Authority to issue its revenue bonds (the 2025
Bonds”), in one or more series and in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $110,000,000,
to provide all or a portion of the funds required to (i) effect the current refunding of all or a portion
of the outstanding Prior Obligations, (ii) pay or reimburse all or a portion of the capital costs
associated with the acquisition and/or rehabilitation of one or more Projects, and (iii) pay costs of
issuing the 2025 Bonds and the administrative costs of such refundings.

(d) Additional Bonds Under Indenture. Pursuant to a Trust Indenture dated
November 6, 2019, as previously supplemented by a First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated
June 18, 2020 and a Second Supplemental Trust Indenture dated December 15, 2021 (as so
supplemented, and as it may be further supplemented from time to time, the “Indenture”), each
between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee
(the “Trustee”), the Authority previously issued its Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds,
2019 (the “2019 Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $63,235,000, its Pooled Housing
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2020 (the “2020 Bonds™) in the aggregate principal amount of
$136,885,000, and its Pooled Housing Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2021 (the “2021
Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $83,530,000, and authorized the issuance of the
Additional Bonds (as defined in the Indenture), on a parity of lien with the 2019 Bonds, the 2020
Bonds, and the 2021 Bonds if certain conditions are met. The 2025 Bonds, when and if issued, will

-2-
FG: 103407864.5



be issued as Additional Bonds under the Indenture. The Authority anticipates that it may in the future
authorize the issuance of additional bonds for Authority purposes (collectively with the 2019 Bonds,
the 2020 Bonds, the 2021 Bonds, and the 2025 Bonds, the “Bonds”), pursuant to the Indenture.

Section 2. Definitions. Certain capitalized terms used herein have the meanings set forth
in the foregoing Section 1. In addition, as used in this resolution, the following capitalized terms
have the following meanings, except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context
otherwise clearly requires:

“Act” means chapter 35.82 of the Revised Code of Washington.

“Additional Bonds” means the additional parity bonds authorized to be issued by
the Authority pursuant to the Indenture.

“Authority” means the Housing Authority of the County of King, a public body
corporate and politic duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State.

“Authorized Officers” means the President/Chief Executive Officer, Executive
Vice President of Administration/Chief Administrative Officer, Executive Vice President of
Development, and Senior Vice President of Development and Asset Management of the Authority,
each of whom is designated as an “Authorized Representative” of the Authority for purposes of
the Indenture.

“Board” means the Board of Commissioners of the Authority.

“Bond” or “Bonds” means one or more of the 2019 Bonds, the 2020 Bonds, the
2021 Bonds, the 2025 Bonds, and any Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture.

“Bond Purchase Contract” means the Purchase Contract between the Authority and
the Underwriter relating to the sale of the 2025 Bonds.

“Bond Registrar” means the entity serving as registrar, authenticating agent and
paying agent under the Indenture, initially the Trustee.

“Brier Woods Project” means the apartment complex containing 136 dwelling units
located at 31224 Pete \Von Reichbauer Way S. Federal Way, Washington (also known as 31224 20™"
Avenue South, Federal Way, Washington), known as the Brier Woods Apartments.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement
between the Authority and the dissemination agent named therein, relating to the 2025 Bonds,
including any supplements or amendments thereto made in conformity therewith.

“County” means the County of King, Washington.

FG: 103407864.5



“First Supplemental Indenture” means the First Supplemental Trust Indenture dated
June 18, 2020, between the Authority and the Trustee relating to the 2020 Bonds, as originally
executed or as it may be from time to time be supplemented, modified, or amended.

“General Revenues” means all revenues of the Authority from any source (other
than Project Revenues), but only to the extent that those revenues are available to pay debt service
on the Bonds and are not now or hereafter pledged or restricted, by law, regulation, contract,
covenant, resolution, deed of trust or otherwise (including restrictions relating to funds made
available to the Authority under the U.S. Housing Act of 1937), solely to another particular
purpose.

“Henry House Project” means the apartment complex containing 54 dwelling units
located at 345 NW Richmond Beach Road, Shoreline, Washington (also known as 351 NW
Richmond Beach Road, Shoreline, Washington), known as the Henry House Apartments.

“Indenture” means the Trust Indenture dated November 6, 2019, between the
Authority and the Trustee relating to the Bonds, as it may from time to time be supplemented,
modified or amended, including, without limitation, by the First Supplemental Indenture, the
Second Supplemental Indenture, and the Third Supplemental Indenture.

“Overlake Partnership” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8.
“Overlake Project” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 8.
“Prior Obligations” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9.

“Project Revenues” means all amounts due to or received by the Authority or by
the Trustee for the account of the Authority pursuant or with respect to the Deed of Trust Projects
or revenues from Projects that are not Deed of Trust Projects but which have been specifically
pledged by the Authority to the payment of the Bonds, including without limitation all rental
revenue, subsidy payments, lease payments, payments on contractors’ bonds, insurance proceeds
and condemnation awards and proceeds resulting from foreclosure of a Deed of Trust, but
excluding refundable security deposits.

“Refunded Obligations” has the meaning ascribed thereto in Section 9.

“Second Supplemental Indenture” means the Second Supplemental Trust Indenture
dated December 15, 2021, between the Authority and the Trustee relating to the 2021 Bonds, as
originally executed or as it may be from time to time be supplemented, modified, or amended.

“State” means the State of Washington.

“Sterling Ridge Project” means the apartment complex containing 116 dwelling
units located at 11328 SE Kent-Kangley Road, Kent, Washington, known as the Sterling Ridge
Apartments.

“Tax Certificate” means the Tax Exemption and Nonarbitrage Certificate to be
executed by the Authority in connection with the 2025 Bonds.

-4-
FG: 103407864.5



“Third Supplemental Indenture” means the Third Supplemental Trust Indenture
between the Authority and the Trustee relating to the 2025 Bonds, as originally executed or as it
may be from time to time be supplemented, modified, or amended.

“Trustee” means the entity serving as trustee under the Indenture.

“2019 Bond” or “2019 Bonds” means one or more of the Housing Authority of the
County of King Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2019, authorized by, and at any time
outstanding pursuant to, Resolution No. 5269 of the Authority and the Indenture.

“2020 Bond” or “2020 Bonds” means one or more of the Housing Authority of the
County of King Pooled Housing Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2020, authorized by, and at any time
outstanding pursuant to, Resolution No. 5649 of the Authority and the Indenture.

“2021 Bond” or “2021 Bonds” means one or more of the Housing Authority of the
County of King Pooled Housing Revenue and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2021, authorized by,
and at any time outstanding pursuant to, Resolution No. 5703 of the Authority and the Indenture.

2025 Bond” or “2025 Bonds” means one or more of the Housing Authority of the
County of King Pooled Housing Revenue Bonds, 2025 (with changes to such designation as
contemplated by Section 4), authorized by, and at any time outstanding pursuant to, this resolution,
the Indenture, and the Third Supplemental Indenture.

All other capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings
assigned to them in the Indenture, including the Third Supplemental Indenture.

Section 3. Authorization of 2025 Bonds and Application of Proceeds. The Authority shall
issue the 2025 Bonds in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $110,000,000, in accordance
with and upon satisfaction of the conditions contained in the Indenture including, without
limitation, Section 2.12. The 2025 Bonds will be issued in order to provide all or a portion of the
funds required to (i) effect the current refunding of all or a portion of the outstanding Prior
Obligations, (ii) pay or reimburse all or a portion of the capital costs associated with the acquisition
and/or rehabilitation of one or more Projects, and (iii) pay costs of issuing the 2025 Bonds and the
administrative costs of such refundings. Such financing with proceeds of the 2025 Bonds is
declared and determined to be important for the feasibility of the Projects to be financed or
refinanced with 2025 Bond proceeds. All proceeds of the 2025 Bonds shall be deposited with the
Trustee for those purposes in accordance with the Indenture. The Board finds that it is in the best
interest of the Authority to issue the 2025 Bonds for the purposes set forth in this resolution.

Section 4. Description of the 2025 Bonds. The Board delegates to the Authorized Officers,
and each of them acting alone, the authority to determine and approve the number of series of the
2025 Bonds, the final principal amounts, dates, interest rates, payment dates, maturity dates, and
redemption provisions of the 2025 Bonds, and whether any series of the Bonds shall be issued on
a taxable or tax-exempt basis (and, if so, the appropriate principal amounts of the taxable and tax-
exempt series of the 2025 Bonds), and to adjust the title of each series of 2025 Bonds to reflect
any series designation, the issuance of any series on a taxable or tax-exempt basis, and the
purpose(s) for which such 2025 Bonds are issued, all as determined by an Authorized Officer and
set forth in the Third Supplemental Indenture. The execution of the Third Supplemental Indenture

-5-
FG: 103407864.5



by an Authorized Officer shall be conclusive evidence of the approval by the Authority of the
terms set forth therein.

The 2025 Bonds shall be designated the Housing Authority of the County of King Pooled
Housing Revenue Bonds, 2025, unless otherwise designated as described above. The 2025 Bonds
shall be issued in registered form; shall be in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed
$110,000,000; shall be in authorized denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof; and
shall be dated such date, bear interest payable on such dates and at such rates, mature at such times
and in such amounts, have such prepayment or redemption provisions, and have such other
provisions consistent with the terms of this resolution as are set forth in the Indenture, including
the Third Supplemental Indenture. The 2025 Bonds may be issued in one or more series, as
determined by an Authorized Officer and set forth in the Third Supplemental Indenture.

Section 5. Security for the 2025 Bonds. The 2025 Bonds shall be special obligations of the
Authority payable solely from the Trust Estate pledged under the Indenture. The Board delegates
to the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, the discretionary authority to determine,
on behalf of the Authority, whether to (i) encumber any Projects financed or refinanced with
proceeds of the 2025 Bonds, or other properties of the Authority, with an additional Deed of Trust
for the benefit of the Trustee, (ii) whether to designate any Projects financed or refinanced with
proceeds of the 2025 Bonds, or other properties of the Authority, as Other Pledged Projects (as
defined in the Indenture), and (iii) in either case, to determine which Projects financed or
refinanced with proceeds of the 2025 Bonds, or other properties of the Authority, shall be so
encumbered or designated.

The 2025 Bonds shall not be a debt of the County, the State or any political subdivision
thereof, and the 2025 Bonds shall so state on their face. Neither the County, the State nor any
political subdivision thereof (except the Authority, from the sources identified herein and in the
Indenture) shall be liable for payment of the 2025 Bonds nor in any event shall principal of,
premium, if any, on and interest on the 2025 be payable out of any funds or assets other than those
pledged to that purpose by the Authority herein and in the Indenture. The Authority has no taxing
power.

The Authority reserves without limitation the right to issue other obligations, the principal of
and interest on which are to be paid from the General Revenues on a parity of lien with the Bonds.
The Authority may also pledge any specific revenues, which otherwise would be General Revenues,
to the payment of other obligations, such payments to have priority over the payments to be made
under the Bonds.

In addition, the Authority reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds under and in accordance
with the terms of the Indenture, which Additional Bonds will be payable from and secured by the
Trust Estate pledged under the Indenture.

None of the Commissioners, officers or employees of the Authority shall be personally
liable for the payment of the Bonds.

Section 6. Form and Execution of 2025 Bonds. Each series of the 2025 Bonds shall be in
a form consistent with the provisions of this resolution, the Indenture (including the Third

-6-
FG: 103407864.5



Supplemental Indenture), and State law, shall bear the manual or facsimile signatures of the Chair
of the Board and President/Chief Executive Officer of the Authority (which position may also be
referred to as the Executive Director or Executive Director and President/Chief Executive Officer
of the Authority) and shall be impressed with the seal of the Authority or shall bear a facsimile
thereof.

The 2025 Bonds shall be authenticated by the Bond Registrar as set forth in the Indenture.
No 2025 Bond shall be valid for any purpose until so authenticated. The authorized signing of a
Certificate of Authentication shall be conclusive evidence that the 2025 Bond so authenticated has
been duly executed, authenticated and delivered and is entitled to the benefits of this resolution.

Section 7. Preservation of Tax Exemption for Interest on 2025 Bonds. The Authority
covenants that it will take all actions necessary to prevent interest on the 2025 Bonds from being
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, and it will neither take any action nor
make or permit any use of proceeds of the 2025 Bonds or other funds of the Authority treated as
proceeds of the 2025 Bonds at any time during the term of the 2025 Bonds that would cause interest
on the 2025 Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Authority
also covenants that, to the extent arbitrage rebate requirements of Section 148 of the Code are
applicable to the 2025 Bonds, it will take all actions necessary to comply (or to be treated as having
complied) with those requirements in connection with the 2025 Bonds, including the calculation
and payment of any penalties that the Authority has elected to pay as an alternative to calculating
rebatable arbitrage, and the payment of any other penalties if required under Section 148 of the
Code to prevent interest on the 2025 Bonds from being included in gross income for federal income
tax purposes.

Section 8. Acquisition of Overlake Project. The Board delegates to the Authorized Officers,
and each of them acting alone, the authority to determine in their discretion whether to proceed with
the acquisition by the Authority from the County of the real property located at 2580 152" Avenue
N.E., Redmond, Washington, sometimes known as the Village at Overlake Station (the “Overlake
Project), and/or the acquisition the leasehold interest of Overlake TOD Housing Limited Partnership
(the “Overlake Partnership”) in the Overlake Project. The Authorized Officers, and each of them
acting alone, are authorized in their discretion to negotiate, approve and execute (on behalf of the
Authority and/or the Overlake Partnership) all documents required or advisable in connection with
transactions, which may include, without limitation, terminations, assignments, and amendments
of existing agreements, and to take all action useful or necessary in connection with such
transactions.

Section 9. Refunding of the Refunded Obligations. The Board hereby delegates to the
Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, the discretionary authority to determine, prior
to the sale and issuance of the 2025 Bonds, whether to proceed with the refunding, in whole or in
part, of each of the Prior Obligations. The Prior Obligations, or portions thereof, selected to be
refunded with proceeds of the 2025 Bonds shall be referred to herein as the “Refunded
Obligations.” The proceeds of the sale of the 2025 Bonds to be used to pay and redeem the
Refunded Obligations shall be promptly transferred by the Trustee to the holder of the Refunded
Obligations or to the trustee under applicable trust indenture, as applicable, and used, together with
other money available for such purposes, to redeem the Refunded Obligations. The Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, are authorized and directed to give, or cause to be given,

-7-
FG: 103407864.5



calls for the redemption of the Refunded Obligations at the times and prices determined by the
Authorized Officers, or each of them acting alone.

Section 10. Authority Findings with Respect to Refunding. The Board finds and
determines that the issuance and sale of the 2025 Bonds at this time is in the best interest of the
Authority. In making such finding and determination, the Board has given consideration to the
terms and maturities of the Refunded Obligations, the proposed terms and maturities of the 2025
Bonds, and the costs of issuance of the 2025 Bonds.

Section 11. Delegation; Authorization of Documents and Execution Thereof. The Board
hereby delegates to the Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, the authority to
negotiate and approve the forms of the Third Supplemental Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract,
the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and the Tax Certificate. The Authority authorizes and
approves the execution and delivery of the 2025 Bonds, the Third Supplemental Indenture, the
Bond Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and the Tax Certificate. The
Authority further and approves the performance by the Authority of its obligations contained in
the 2025 Bonds, the Indenture, the Third Supplemental Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract, the
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Tax Certificate, and this resolution and the consummation
by the Authority of all other transactions contemplated by this resolution in connection with the
issuance of the 2025 Bonds and the refunding of the Refunded Obligations.

The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized and directed
to do everything necessary for the issuance, execution and delivery of the 2025 Bonds, including,
without limitation, appointing the Trustee, and “deeming final” the preliminary official statement
for the 2025 Bonds for the sole purpose of the 2025 Bond purchaser’s compliance with Securities
and Exchange Commission Rule 15c¢2-12(b)(1), and to execute and deliver, on behalf of the
Authority, the Third Supplemental Indenture, the Bond Purchase Contract, the Continuing
Disclosure Agreement, and the Tax Certificate and any other documents that may be useful or
necessary in connection with the refunding of the Refunded Obligations, the issuance of the 2025
Bonds and the creation of the security interests in the funds and assets of the Authority, and to
ensure the proper use and application of the proceeds from the sale of the 2025 Bonds. The
Authorized Officers, and each of them acting alone, are further authorized to approve and execute
an official statement for the 2025 Bonds.

The delegation to the Authorized Officers set forth in this resolution shall include setting
the final number of series, series designations, principal amounts, maturity dates, principal and
interest payment dates, redemption provisions, interest rates, and other terms for the 2025 Bonds;
provided that (a) the aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Bonds does not exceed $110,000,000,
and (b) the final maturity of the 2025 Bonds does not exceed forty years from their date of issue.

Section 12. Acting Officers Authorized. Any action required by this resolution to be taken
by the Chair of the Board may in the absence of such person be taken by the duly authorized acting
Chair of the Board. Any action required by this resolution to be taken by the President/Chief
Executive Officer of the Authority may in the absence of such person be taken by the Executive
Vice President of Administration/Chief Administrative Officer, Executive Vice President of
Development, or Senior Vice President of Development and Asset Management of the Authority.

FG: 103407864.5



Section 13. Approval of Bond Purchase Contract. It is anticipated that KeyBanc Capital
Markets Inc. will present a Bond Purchase Contract to the Authority offering to purchase the 2025
Bonds under the terms and conditions provided herein. The Board finds that entering into the Bond
Purchase Contract is in the best interest of the Authority, and therefore authorizes the Authorized
Officers, and each of them acting alone, to accept such offer on behalf of the Authority.

The 2025 Bonds will be prepared at the Authority’s expense and will be delivered to the
purchaser thereof, with the approving legal opinion of Foster Garvey P.C., bond counsel of Seattle,
Washington, regarding the 2025 Bonds.

The proper Authority officials are authorized and directed to do everything necessary for
the prompt delivery of the 2025 Bonds to the purchaser thereof and for the proper application and
use of the proceeds of the sale thereof.

Section 14. Declaration of Intent to Reimburse. United States Treasury Regulations
Section 1.150-2 relating to the use of proceeds of bonds to reimburse certain expenditures made
before the issue date of the bonds requires that, not later than 60 days after payment of the original
expenditure, the Authority declare a reasonable official intent to reimburse those original
expenditures from proceeds of bonds. The Authority intends to make (or, not more than 60 days
before the date of this resolution, has made) capital expenditures for one or more of the Brier
Woods Project, Henry House Project, Overlake Project, and/or Sterling Ridge Project, from money
on hand but that is not reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside for those
expenditures. The Authority reasonably expects to reimburse itself for those expenditures from
proceeds of the 2025 Bonds.

Section 15. Ratification and Confirmation. Any actions of the Authority or its officers prior
to the date hereof and consistent with the terms of this resolution are ratified and confirmed.

Section 16. Supplemental Authorization. The Authorized Officers, and each of them acting
alone, are authorized on behalf of the Authority to: (i) determine that any document authorized by
this resolution is, at the time such document otherwise would be executed, no longer necessary or
desirable and, based on such determination, cause the Authority not to execute or deliver such
document; (ii) execute and deliver and, if applicable, file (or cause to be delivered and/or filed)
any government forms, applications, affidavits, certificates, letters, documents, agreements and
instruments that such officer determines to be necessary or advisable to give effect to this
resolution and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein; (iii) cause the Authority to
expend such funds as are necessary to pay for all filing fees, application fees, registration fees and
other costs relating to the actions authorized by this resolution; and (iv) notwithstanding any other
Authority resolution, rule, policy, or procedure, to create, accept, execute, send, use, and rely upon
such tangible medium, manual, facsimile, or electronic documents, records and signatures under
any security procedure or platform, as in such Authorized Officer’s judgment may be necessary or
desirable to give effect to this resolution and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein.

Section 17. Execution of Duties and Obligations. The Board authorizes and directs the
Authority’s President/Chief Executive Officer to cause the Authority to fulfill the Authority’s
duties and obligations under the Bonds, the Indenture, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the
Bond Purchase Contract, the Tax Certificate, and this resolution.

-9-
FG: 103407864.5



Section 18. Changes to Titles or Parties. While the titles of and parties to the various
documents described herein may change, no change to such titles or parties shall affect the
authority conferred by this resolution to execute, deliver, file (if required), enforce and perform
the documents in their final form.

Section 19. Severability. If any provision in this resolution is declared by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such provision shall be null and void and shall
be deemed separable from the remaining provisions of this resolution and shall in no way affect
the validity of the other provision of this resolution or the 2025 Bonds.

Section 20. Effective Date. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its adoption and approval.

ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF KING AT AN OPEN PUBLIC
MEETING THIS 17'" DAY OF MARCH, 2025.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF KING

DOUGLAS J. BARNES, Chair
Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Robin Walls
President/CEO and Secretary-Treasurer

-10-
FG: 103407864.5



CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting President / Chief Executive Officer
and Secretary of the Housing Authority of the County of King (the “Authority’) and keeper of the
records of the Authority, CERTIFY:

1. That the attached Resolution No. 5789 (the “Resolution”) is a true and correct copy
of the resolution of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority as adopted at a regular meeting of
the Authority held at the regular meeting place on March 17, 2025 (the “Meeting”), and duly recorded
in the minute books of the Authority;

2. That the public was notified of access options for remote participation in the Meeting
via the Authority’s website; and;

3. That the Meeting was duly convened, held, and included an opportunity for public
comment, in all respects in accordance with law, and to the extent required by law, due and proper
notice of the Meeting was given; that a quorum was present throughout the Meeting, and a majority
of the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Authority present at the Meeting voted in the
proper manner for the adoption of the Resolution; that all other requirements and proceedings incident
to the proper adoption of the Resolution have been duly fulfilled, carried out and otherwise observed,
and that | am authorized to execute this Certificate.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this 17th day of March, 2025.

Robin Walls, President / Chief Executive Officer
and Secretary

FG: 103407864.5



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

4



” King County
Housing
[, ] l . Authority

KCHA Executive Dashboard

2024 Q4

October - December 2024

Households Served

point in time as of December 2024" 23,995
Finance
Budgeted Actual Actual to Budget
Revenue year-to-date $537,959,518 $564,825,775 105.0% O
Expenditure year-to-date $467,908,582 $457,014,185 97.7% o
85% 110.0%
LGIP Rate Investments 4.52% 4.60% +0.08% .
Non-LGIP Investments 4.52% 2.89% -1.63% —
0.0% 7.0%
Housing Management
Scope Target Dec 24
. . 3.766
Public Housing Occupancy® onits 98.0% 97.7% J
Local Programs Occupanc 8716 96.5% 8.3% O
9 pancy units e 9%-3
95% 100%
. . 12,711
Total Units Online3 onits 11,105 12,711 O
9,000 13,000
Housing Choice Voucher Program Operations
Shelter Burden Shopping Success* Utilization Rate®
Households paying more than 40% Lease-up within 240 days after voucher Percentage of HUD ACC leased by
of income for rent and ufilities. issuance, by cohort. month.
30% 4 125% -
MTW Block Grant
90% - 120% 8% Vouchers 17%
/20 Goal 1 ./,\_\_u
25% Goal | | mersesessssesessesisininiininininnn s e 115% -
70% - 110% -
20% A
105% | T os
g 109%
J 57% ]
15% 1 12.3% 13.0% 0% 100%
All Vouchers
95%
10% - T 30% 90%
Dec - 23 Jun-24 Dec - 24 Dec - 23 Dec -24 Dec - 23 Jun-24 Dec - 24
Focus Areas
Inclusion Now Training Opportunity Area Access Notes

Percentage of staff who have
completed Inclusion Now (l).

Completed, 100%

Percentage of households with children living in high

opportunity areas.

35% 1
32.2% 33.9%
Creating Moves to
Opportunity Areas
Goal
30% P e OO 1
25% T T T
Dec - 21 Dec - 22 Dec - 23 Dec - 24

1) Includes households in federally subsidized
programs, workforce housing, and local
programs. 2) Excludes 49 units in portfolio
where turnover is not tfracked monthly. 3)
11,105 represents the agency's acquisition
stretch goal by the end of 2020. 4) Represents
success of latest cohort to reach 240 days
after voucherissuance. 5) Does not include
Emergency Housing Vouchers.



= << 0

Z D > 0 W

LO



/\ King County

Housing
Authority

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Mary Osier, Accounting Manager
Penny Bradley, Assistant Vice President of Property Management

DATE: March 11, 2025

RE: 4th Quarter 2024 Summary Write-Offs

During the 4th quarter of 2024, tenant accounts totaling $24,503 were dseemed uncollectable
and written off. Per policy, all accounts with balances owed of $100 or more will be forwarded
to KCHA's contracted collection agency. The total number of accounts and total owed this
quarter represent a reduction from the three previous quarters of 2024. A single account totaled
nearly half of the total processed at $10,376.01.

There were a 17 accounts written off, for various reasons. Only two were the result of
termination of tenancy for non-payment and criminal conduct.

Total YTD
WRITE-OFFS WRITE-OFFS
Rent Balance Forward to Vacate Month $ 9,469 3 205,874
Retro Rent Write-offs $ 10,440 $ 22,112
VACATE CHARGES:
Rent Delinquent in Vacate Month $ 4148 % 37,330
Cleaning & Damages $ 5,101 $ 99,322
Paper Service & Court Costs $ - $ -
Miscellaneous Charges $ - $ 1,615
Total Charges $ 9,249 $ 138,266
Total All Charges $ 29,158 3 366,251
CREDITS:
Security Deposits $ (2150) $ (19,162)
Miscellaneous Payments & Credits $ (2,505 $ (23,510)
Total Credits $ (4655 3 (42,672)
Total Net Write-offs $ 24,503 $ 323,580
Net Write-offs by Portfolio
KCHA $ 12,977 3 302,861
Green River Il $ - $ -
Soosette Creek $ 10,376 $ 17,496
Zephyr $ - $ 1,458
Fairwind $ - $ -
Vantage Point $ - $ -
Spiritwood Manor $ 1,150 $ 1,765

$ 24,503 $ 323,580






